
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JULY 5, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Ceremonial Swearing in of Mayor Helbling and Commissioner 
Davis 

2. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 21, 2016 Board of 
City Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of the following games of chance: 
i. Catholic Foundation for the People of Bismarck Diocese 

games of chance at Prairie West Golf Course on July 18, 
2016. 

ii. Dakota Zoological Society at Prairie West Golf Course on 
August 5, 2016 

2. Consider for approval plat of Big Sky 6th Addition. 
3. Consider approval of previously provided land acquisition support 

as local match for Flex PACE interest buydown for Family Wellness 
4. Consider approval to auction Planning and Engineering 

Department’s 1996 GMC Yukon.  
5. Consider employment contract between Board of City 

Commissioners & City Administrator. 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Discussion regarding new home construction first $75,000 

exemption 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Consider approval of amendment to the Dakota Central 

Communications Joint Powers Agreement. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

July 5, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 
2. Presentation for information on Bisman Transit revised routes.  
3. Consider approval of Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements. 
4. Consider commission portfolio and committee assignments. 
5. Consider Reappointment of Sue Balcom & Cameo Skager to the 

Dakota Media Access Board of Directors. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second consideration of Ordinance 1244 annexing property at 
2300 14th Ave. SE. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 of 
Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition. 

3. First consideration of Ordinance 1247 amending and reenacting 
Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code 
related to juvenile curfew. 

4. First consideration of Ordinance 1248 adding and enacting Chapter 
26 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. July 19, 2016 
2. August 2, 2016 
3. August 16, 2016 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 21, 2016 

Page 1 of 5 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on June 21, 

2016 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.   

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Braun, and Laber (via 

teleconference call). Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police 

Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public 

Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner 

Decker, and Building Official Lalim. Absent:  Assessor Shaw and Business Development 

& Communications Director Huber. 

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the 

Agenda. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda to come forward.  A second announcement 

was made inviting anyone to come forward to speak on the Agenda.  Hearing none, this 

portion of the Public Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider for approval the Board of City Commission minutes from the May 20, 

2016 Board of City Commission Working Session; the June 7, 2016, Regular Meeting 

Minutes and the June 15, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes.   Commissioner Braun moved 

to approve the minutes as presented. Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  The 

motion received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

F.         BIDS: 

1.         Consider concurrence with NDDOT to award downtown ADA curb ramp 

construction to low bidder, Knife River. Planning & Engineering Director Froseth 

presented a request for the approval of the East Main Street ADA Curb Ramp 

Improvements project award concurrent with NDDOT.  He stated that the NDDOT 

annually reviews and addresses any of the corridors in the state that are not in compliance 

with the recent ADA standards for handicap accessibility. There has been ongoing 

planning to make improvements to the east side of Mandan’s Main Street with 

construction scheduled this year. The west side of Mandan’s Main Street was done in 

2015. The DOT opened bids for this project on June 10
th

 and 5 bids were received.  The 

low bid came from Knife River Corp. at $364,897.48, about 31% under the engineer’s  

estimate.  The City’s cost share of this project is 10% of the total cost which is 

approximately $61,000 and would be paid for by the city sales tax fund.  The low bid was 

approximately $365,000 plus costs including the NDDOT 10% construction costs, the 

right of way costs and consultant engineering costs for a total project cost of $609,000. 

This figure also includes the engineering work costs and the costs for the consultant fees.  

The DOT may have already paid the costs for the consulting engineer but those costs are 

not outside of the scope of the project and may be attributed towards the project design.  

Director Froseth recommended approving the bid to Knife River.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 21, 2016 

Page 2 of 5 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the concurrence of East Main Street ADA ramp 

improvements bid award to the low bidder, Knife River in the amount of $364,897.48. 

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of monthly bills. 

2.         Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for Collins Reservoir Inspection. 

3.         Lakewood Harbor 3
rd

 Addition First Replat of Block 1. 

4.         Consider approval of annual Liquor Licenses for July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

5.         Consider approval of Special Sunday Openings for all annual Liquor Licenses. 

6.         Consider approval of authorized check signers. 

7.         Consider approval of a road closure for Starion Financial. 

8.         Consider agreement with Lewis and Clark Regional Development Council for 

origination and servicing of loan to SSWII, LLP for a Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE 

interest buy-down. 

10.       Consider for approval replat of Block 5, Macedonia Hills 1
st
 Addition. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Commissioner 

Tibke seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

H.      OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.        NEW BUSINESS: 

1.       Presentation of plaques to businesses donating $500 or more to the community 

boulevard tree-planting program. City Arborist Kaiden Straabe stated that earlier this 

year the Forestry Department solicited donations from local businesses for the 

community boulevard tree-planting program. As of June 1
st
, the City has received $5,000 

in donations and the businesses donating $500 or more were presented with a plaque. 

Businesses donating $1,000 or more will also have their names included on a perpetual 

plaque that will be displayed in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Meeting Room at Mandan City 

Hall. 

 

Mayor Van Beek extended a thank you and presented plaques to the businesses donating 

$1,000 or more, (Armstrong Sanitation, Bollinger Tree Service, Starion Financial); and 

the businesses donating $500 or more, (Gate City Bank, and Prairie View Landscaping).  

Other contributions were also received from the Bismarck Mandan Home Builders 

Association and Capitol Credit Union.     

 

2.       Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-

18(Lakewood 8th Addition First Replat). Planning & Engineering Director Froseth 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 21, 2016 

Page 3 of 5 

presented a request to authorize the installation of water and sewer for the development 

of a project that is located at 24
th

 Street SE and Gale Circle, between 34
th

 Avenue SE and 

40
th

 Avenue SE. The proposed utilities will only serve the developer of the benefiting 

land; therefore, this project is being paid for by the developer under a 3-way agreement. 

The need for this smaller 3-way agreement stems from a re-plat project done within 

Lakewood 8
th

 due to the reconfiguration of lots. Those lot adjustments require some 

corresponding adjustments to the water and sewer service lines. All the original water and 

sewer installation in Lakewood 8
th

 was done last fall that had a completion date of June 

10
th

.   The work has not been completed due to other construction work that needs to be 

done before it can be completed. The completion date of this project will be pushed back 

to allow a reasonable time for the street project completion dates. A Letter of Credit has 

not been received, so the approval of the 3-way agreement would be contingent on 

receipt of that letter of credit.  Director Froseth recommended approving the resolution 

and approving the plans and specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement 

for this project.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the resolution approving the plans and 

specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement for water and sewer 

improvement Project 2016-18 (Lakewood 8th Addition First Replat) contingent on 

receiving Letter of Credit.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.        RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.       Second consideration of Ordinance 1240 related to building and lot numbering. 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Second consideration of Ordinance 1240 

amending and re-enacting Article 12, Chapter 111 of the Mandan Municipal Code related 

to building and lot numbering. Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

    

2.       First consideration of Ordinance 1244 annexing property at 2300 14
th

 Ave. SE. 

Planner Decker stated that the owners of this property have requested annexation.  They 

are on a street that is mostly located within the City; however, this portion of the property 

remains outside the City.  Water and sewer are available for this street. The assessment 

for the water and sewer will be paid by the property owners once they are annexed.  They 

are requesting the annexation because they currently have well water that is poor water 

quality.  The sewer system on the property is functioning correctly as confirmed by 

Custer Health and the City will work on connecting it over to the sewer line sometime in 

the future.  The majority of the properties along this street are within city limits.  This is a 

voluntary request so there is no protest option requirement.  City Attorney Brown stated 

that the City has a separate agreement with the property owners in the event their septic 

tank fails to work. If it fails, they must connect to the city sanitation system and if they 

don’t, the City will have the option to terminate their water services.   

  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 21, 2016 

Page 4 of 5 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1244 

annexing property at 2300 14th Ave. SE.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  

Absent; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.         Presentation of awards to Mayor Van Beek and Commissioner Tibke. 

Mayor Van Beek stated that during the years that Commissioner Tibke has served on the 

City Commission, the community witnessed significant growth, a stable decline to the 

mill levy and the revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area.  He reviewed 

many of the projects Commissioner Tibke assisted with throughout her tenure with the 

City of Mandan from 2003 to present.  On behalf of the City of Mandan, Mayor Van 

Beek extended a thank you to Commissioner Tibke for serving as a City Commissioner 

and also for serving as the Vice-President of the Commission.   

 

Commissioner Tibke commented that it was interesting to read through the years of 

accomplishments of the many city government projects that she had been active in 

pursing and noted that many of the items were very challenging.  

 

Commissioner Tibke then presented a watch to Mayor Van Beek and thanked him for his 

service to the City of Mandan over the past four years. 

 

2.           Consider for approval the Abstract of Votes cast by the voters of City of Mandan 

in the Consolidated Primary Election held the 14
th

 day of June A.D. 2016.  Commissioner 

Tibke moved to approve the Abstract of Votes cast by the voters of City of Mandan in the 

Consolidated Primary Election held the 14
th

 day of June A.D. 2016.   Commissioner 

Laber seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.           Consider motion for Vice-President of the Board of City Commissioners.  

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the appointment of Commissioner Rohr to serve 

as the new Vice-President of the Board of City Commissioners.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

This is Mayor Van Beek’s last City Commission meeting serving as the mayor. He 

extended a thank you to the residents of City of Mandan for allowing him to serve as 

their Mayor.   

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Tibke moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:00 p.m. Commissioner  

Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members 

present. The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 21, 2016 

Page 5 of 5 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 

 

 



IConsent NO.1 i I
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION

'<{?~·~fJit~~:~~;- SFN 17926 (10/2012) IPermitNumber
Type: o Local Permit *0 Charity Local Permit

2016-37
Nameof Orqanizatron Dale(s)Authorized (Read instruction 2)

Catholic Foundation ForThe People Of Bismarck Diocese
ContactPerson BusinessPhoneNumber 7/18/2016 to 7/18/2016

Kim M Dvorak Beginning Ending

MailingAddress 1.Ity IState IZip Code
520 N Washington St Bismarck NO 58502-0000

SileName ~ SiteAddress
PrairieWest Course 2709lonQspur Trail

City State ZIP Code County

Mandan NO 58554-00( Morton

Check theGame(s)Authorized; • Poker,Twenly-one,and Paddlewheels maybe Conducted only by a Charily LocalPermit.

o Bingo [[]Raffle o Calendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker" o Twenly-one" o Paddlewheels"

Restriction:

Requirement: For a "Charily LocalPermit:' the organizationmust file a "Report On a Charity LocalPermit"wilh the cily or county auditor m Officeof
Attorney Generalwit~ days of the event /

Date Si~~~A/~ountYAUdit~r PrintedName of City or CountyAuditor IAuditorTelephone Number

6/22/2016 Patrick B Haug (701) 667·3250FA!? _ ./7..r- :.?""'-.

Pleasesee the instructY: ns on lhe backside<6f thisfO~how to completethe Permit.
For a rameor calendar raffle, read "InformationRequired to be Preprintedon a StandardRaffleTicket"below.

_____________________~~~thi~~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, inclUding any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize Selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenly dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a Winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a licket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_u years of age to buy a ticket, orwin a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



MailingAddress (if different)

Name of Site Where Game(s) will be Conduqed

Ti.C11'U Wf'sf ~/p (c... v,!5e.
SiteAddress

State

Zip Code

5g-5:"oZ
ZipCode

Check the Game(s)to be Conducted: • poker,Twenty-one.and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a CharityLocal Permit.

o Bingo I2i' Raffle 0 Raffle Board 0 CalendarRaffle 0 Sports Pool 0 Poker * 0 Twenty-one' 0 Paddlewheels *

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

GameType Description of Prize Retail Value of
Prize

t'~f¥1c- ;U - fJ.5r.P l/f~l e. J7t?;Je?:

31/60 Rttfl:\e tW5l .;f..c;0t;.?
r

GameType Description of Prize Retail Value of
Prize

(Limil$12,000 perye.r)

Total: $

Does the organizationpresentlyhavea state gaming license? IXI No 0 Yas - If "Yes," the organization is noteligible for a localpermitOrcharity local
permit andshouldcall the Office ofAttorney General at 1-800-326"9240.

Has the organizationreceiveda charitylocal permitfrom this or anothercity or countyfor the fiscalyear July 1 through June 301 fR) No 0 Yes- If "Yes."
the organizationdoes not qualifyfor a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organizationreceiveda localpermit from this or another city or county for the fiscalyear July 1 throughJune301 WNo DYes - If "Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizespreviouslyawarded: $ . Thisamountispart ofthe tot"ill prize limit0($12,000 peryear.

ecutiveOfficial Business Phone Number



IConsent No. 1ii I

q

LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTHDAKOTA OFFICEOF ATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926(10/2012)····~:?~~~~);~w~~y~

Type: [RJ Local Permit .. 0 Charity Local Permit
Permit Number

2016-38
Name of Organizalion Daters) Authorized (Read Instruction 2)

Dakota Zooloqical Society
Contact Person Business Phone Number 8/512016 to 8f512016

Barb Schmitcke Beginning Ending

Mailing Address (;I\y IState Zip Code

600 S 7th 8t Bismarck NO 58504-0000
Site Name Site Address

Prairie WestGolfCourse 2709 Lonqspur Trail Se
City State IZIPCode County

Mandan ND 58554-00l Morton
Check theGame(s) Authorized: • POker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted onlyby a Charity Local Permit.

D Bingo [K] Raffle o Calendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenty-one" o Paddlewheels'

Restriction:

Requirement: Fora "Charily Local Permit," theorganiza1ion mus/ "Report ona Charity LOCal Permit" "'lith the cityorcountyauditor~ Office of
Attorney General withj~J daysof theevent.

Date
rSI7aA'~~tYAUditor Printed Name OfCityor Colmly Auditor Auditor Telephone I\\.imber

6f29f2016 Patrick B Haug

Please see the instructio~ on thebackside oflt~rm on~to complete thePermit
-

Fora raffie or calendar raffie. read "Information e uired tobePreprinted ona Standard Raffie Ticket" below.

_____________________~~ng~~~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1, Name of organization;
2, Ticket number;
3, Price of the ticket. inclUding any discounted price;
4, Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars. an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a Iicensed!organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number, For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7, Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week ormonth, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize reqUires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10, If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11, A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12, If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13, If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.



APPLICATION FORA LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN9338 (9-2009)

Application for: .BJ-ocal Permit *0 Charity Local Permit (oneeventperyear)

Nameof Non-profit Organization Date(s) ofActivity

0(.... Ii.. 0 ~.C\ LoO 10 q; cQ I 5 o« ~ e 1· y ,q,~\.cl C; to n-: 5'
Perso~ Responsible for theGalT\ing Operation and the Disbursement of Nellncome Title Business PhoneNrlmber

-g C\. r b ~ c-k1M ~ -I--- c. / L ~ c- hC\..-'t r-O'lliti -Business Address
l <t:i, S·ft

City

1.~" ~i1(f£.{cIL 1]0
L.II'-" VUUloJ

(0 0 o 51 S~·S·6f4
Mailing Address(if different) City State ZipCode

Nameof SiteVVl1ere Game(s) will be Conducted SiteAddrea-70 q
LoVl4 5'ij>tJl~ V' 'tvc{d~ !'<.\." \I.\ f' ~) -E' <.t (<>-0 ,P- c0 Lt jI 5 -p

City
(l;L tt lI\ cf a /11. j$J StateD IZip Code County (J,1 '1-..AJ ss« S· y sr 011-

Check the Game(s) to beConducted: * Poker, Twenly-one, andPaddlewheels maybe Conducted onlyby a Charily Local Permit.

o Bingo ~Raffle DCalendar Raffle o SportsPool o Poker' D Twenty-one * D Paddlewheels'

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIl.. VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of
Dri?<>-

5' 'I It\ ~ IT t .'c/t.f' .J~ I.~ ~ IL-e > ~;2.. o 0
'" .N-e ((lIQt.. -e Sf/50

pet S S fI&PO 0

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Valueof
Prize

(limit $12.000 peryear)

Total: $

Dq I t-o ""q 2.,,96

Doestheorganization presenUy havea slategaminglicense? M No 0 Yes • If "Yes," the organization is noteligible fora focal permitorcharily local
permitandshould call theOffice of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240.

Has the organization received a charilylocalpermit from this or anothercityor county for the fiscalyearJuly1 through June30?'liYNO .~·1es - If''Yes,''
the organization doesnotqualifyfor a localpermitor charily localpermit.

Has theorganization received a localpermit from thisor anothercity or countyfor the fiscal year July1 through June3D? 0 No ~. Yes - If "Yes,"
indicate the total valueof all prizes preViously awarded: $ (p t () _(X)rhis amount Ispart of the totalprize limitof$12,OOO peryear,

Tille/"0 I! .
U~

Business Phone Number



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

This request is to consolidate 3 lots into 1. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

This plat is needed in order to allow extension of city potable water and sanitary sewer 

service to this lot. 

 

The combination of the lots allows connection to the existing utility lines located in 

Hillside Road. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. plat 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Recommend approval. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve plat of Big Sky 6
th

 Addition. 

 

  

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval plat of Big Sky Estates 6
th

 

Addition 

 

  

Consent No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Plat of big Sky 6
th
 Addition 

Page 2 of 3 

Existing lot layout 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Plat of big Sky 6
th
 Addition 

Page 3 of 3 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider supporting a Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE 

interest buy down for the Family Wellness project using a previous contribution for land 

acquisition as the local match.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Starion Financial, on behalf of the Missouri Valley 

Family YMCA and Family Wellness Bismarck Mandan, LLC, is seeking partnership with 

the Bank of North Dakota through its Flex PACE program for permanent financing and 

interest buy down for the Family Wellness project, currently under construction at 2620 

46
th

 Avenue SE in Mandan.  

 

The applicant is seeking the maximum buy down amount of $153,846. The Bank of 

North Dakota will provide 65 percent or $100,000 of the amount, with the local 

community required to provide 35 percent or $53,846. The buy-down is on a principal 

amount of $1 million. The buy down will reduce the interest rate from an estimated 4  

percent (rate to be fixed at time of closing) to 1.0% for approximately the first 42 months 

of the loan. 

 

Bank of North Dakota community match requirements indicate “the community may 

meet its matching requirement through direct cash, loans, equity, investments, land, 

property or infrastructure, and any combination of these.” 

The Mandan City Commission previously approved a total of $1.5 million of support for 

this project via a motion voted on at a meeting held June 18, 2013. The Commission 

approved a recommendation from the Mandan Visitors Committee related to Mandan 

Park District land acquisition that $1.5 be committed from the Visitors  Fund to assist the 

Mandan Park District in acquiring the property necessary to bring a YMCA project to 

Mandan.  The commitment of $1.5 million was for $750,000 as negotiations were 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 30, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Local match for Family Wellness Interest Buy-

Down 

 

  

Consent No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down 

Page 2 of 6 

 

completed with the remaining $750,000 to be granted to the Park District in increments of 

$150,000 per year for the following 5 years.  The first payment of $750,000 was provided 

on July 9, 2013. Documentation of this commitment and expenditure has been provided 

to the Bank of North Dakota and approved as the local match, subject to approval of the 

community participating in the Flex PACE request.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Amortization schedule and Mandan Messenger article providing 

additional background on the project and funding relationship. Loan committal letter 

available upon request. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  No additional funding beyond that already committed is required. 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Family Wellness will need to enter into a business incentive 

agreement with the Bank of North Dakota and City of Mandan and will need to submit an 

annual jobs verification report for five years after receipt of the interest buy-down. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend support of the Family Wellness application for 

interest buy-down through the Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE program with the 

previous contribution for land acquisition to serve as the local match.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve support of the Family Wellness application 

for interest buy-down through the Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE program with the 

previous contribution for land acquisition to serve as the local match.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down 

Page 4 of 6 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  A request to auction a 1996 GMC Yukon that is currently 

part of the planning and engineering staff’s small fleet. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The 1996 Yukon has a list of problems that 

includes: 

 Front driver’s seat is broken and is no longer fully bolted to the base. Public 

Works shop staff took a look and said that to fix correctly, it would require an 

all new seat. 

 The vehicle has stalled out at stop lights and stop signs when idling for some time. 

 Driver’s side electric windows no longer work. 

 Air conditioning unit is slow to cool vehicle. 

 All tire treads are worn down. One tire has a slow leak. 

 

Our department believes that given the vehicle is 20 years old, and the condition of it is 

fair at best aside from the issues listed above, the best path forward is to sell the vehicle at 

auction. Our office plans to find a replacement vehicle but will make due without until we 

find that replacement. Our office does have a 2004 Chevy Tahoe that we use as well.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Yukon’s Title 

2) Pictures of Yukon 

3) Kelly Blue Book Price Report  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Kelly Blue Book has the value in fair condition at $2,248. A grade of 

fair condition is generous.  

 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon   

 

  

Consent No. 4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon 

Page 2 of 6  

  

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff is making due with one vehicle. Two vehicles would be more 

appropriate so that we would not need to schedule trips around when that vehicle is 

available.   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended to approve the 1996 Yukon be auctioned off. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the auctioning of the 1996 GMC Yukon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon 

Page 3 of 6  

  

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon 

Page 4 of 6  

  

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon 

Page 5 of 6  

  

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Auction off 1996 GMC Yukon 

Page 6 of 6  

  

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider an employment contract for the City 

Administrator between the City of Mandan and Jim Neubauer. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Mr. Neubauer has been employed as the City 

Administrator since February 1, 2000. The proposed contract would run through 

December 31, 2017 which would put it back on a three year rotation.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed contract 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a as salary remains constant unless there is a salary study or salary 

adjustments are allowed via the budget in 2017. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Agreement is similar in nature to previous agreements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the employment contract between the 

Board of City Commissioner and Jim Neubauer. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the proposed employment contract between 

the Board of City Commissioners and Jim Neubauer 

 

 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 30, 2015 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Tim Helbling, Mayor 

SUBJECT: Employment Contract City Administrator 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 5  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Employment Contract City Administrator 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

Employment Contract for City Administrator 

City of Mandan, North Dakota 

 

 

THE PARTIES to this Agreement are: 

 

1. City of Mandan, North Dakota, party of the first part (hereafter Mandan). 

2. James Neubauer, 801 25th Street SE, Mandan, ND (hereafter Neubauer).  

 

Terms and Conditions of Employment Contract 

 

The following recitals shall be deemed a part of this Agreement, and the parties agree that 

they accurately set forth the circumstances and basis upon which this Agreement has been 

executed: 

 

1. Mandan, by resolution of the Board of City Commissioners, has appointed James 

Neubauer as its City Administrator for a period of three (3) years beginning January 1, 

2015 and ending December 31, 2017.  The annual salary for 2015 will be $102,482, for 

2016 the annual salary will be $102,482, the 2017 salary would be the previous years’ 

salary plus any Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) as approved in the 2017 budget and if 

merit adjustments are applicable to other city employees the merit adjustment would 

range from 0% to the maximum other city employees are eligible for based on job 

performance. The contract may be renewed for a like or longer term by vote of the 

majority of the Board of City Commissioners. Should the Board of City Commissioners 

enter into a salary study for all employees the position of City Administrator shall be 

included and participate in any adjustments recommended in the plan as approved the 

Board of City Commissioners. 

 

2. The position of the City Administrator is not part of the Mandan’s civil service 

system, and the City Administrator is an employee at will, serving at the pleasure of the 

Board of City Commissioners and is subject to dismissal with or without cause, upon 

notice.   

 

3. A written performance review shall be conducted by each member of the Board 

and returned to the Mayor on an annual basis and the results reviewed with the city 

administrator and board members as outlined in the performance review. 

 

4. Neubauer shall receive the same benefits relating to sick leave, sick family leave, 

funeral leave, personal leave, vacation, health insurance, term insurance, long term 

disability insurance, pension eligibility, holidays, and travel reimbursement as any other 

employee in accordance with his/her year of employment with the City of Mandan.  The 

benefit package and continuing education reimbursement may be renegotiated at any time 

during the contract term as determined by Mandan and Neubauer. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Employment Contract City Administrator 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

5. In the event, Mandan cancels the terms of this Agreement at any time during the 

contract term, Neubauer shall be entitled to a severance payment equal to six months 

salary, payable on the last day of employment, and the City of Mandan will continue to 

pay the premium cost of health insurance and term insurance for the coverage in effect at 

the time of termination of employment for a period of six months. 

 

A termination for cause, including by not limited to conduct specified below will not 

entitle Neubauer to either severance pay or insurance benefits post termination. 

 

a) Unlawful use of any drugs, narcotic or other controlled substance while on duty, 

or reporting to work when under the influence of intoxicants or any narcotic or controlled 

substance; 

b) Continued failure to perform the assigned work in a satisfactory manner; 

c) Conviction of a felony or conviction of a misdemeanor involving dishonesty or 

moral turpitude; 

d) Engaging in criminal, infamous, dishonest or notoriously disgraceful conduct, or 

other conduct prejudicial to the government; 

e) Engaging in conduct or making public statements which adversely affect the 

confidence of the public in the integrity of the board of city commissioners, the 

department heads or city government or which directly or indirectly condemns or 

criticizes the policies of the city or any of its departments; 

f) Taking any action which might prejudice the city's interest in a criminal or civil 

action.  

 

Duties and Responsibilities of City Administrator 

 

Neubauer, in his capacity as City Administrator of the City of Mandan shall exercise and 

perform the following duties and responsibilities: 

 

1. Initiate a long and short term strategic planning process which identifies specific 

goals, objectives, and projects for Mandan in order to better deliver services to its 

citizens. 

 

2. Serve in the legal capacity as auditor, although specific duties and responsibilities 

of the auditor’s office may be assigned to others, as the city administrator determines is 

best for the operation of the office. 

 

3. Direct the daily administration of the City of Mandan. 

1. Develop and expedite public policies and programs. 

2. Work with department heads to promote efficient and effective operations. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Employment Contract City Administrator 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

4. Make recommendations to the Board of City Commissioners and administer 

policies and guidelines adopted by the Board. 

 

5. Attend all regular and special meetings of the Board and meetings of the 

department heads. 

1. Deliver administrative and operational reports to the Board. 

2. Develop and expedite the most economical and responsible achievement of public 

policy. 

 

6. Direct, coordinate, prioritize and assign work to department heads and division 

managers as necessary in order to solve problems and accomplish specific operational 

goals, objectives and special projects. 

 

7. Serve as Mandan’s chief administrative officer and human resource manager 

which includes: 

1. Managing personnel issues; 

2. Developing and implementing Mandan’s human resource manual; and 

3. Serving as clerk of the Mandan Civil Service Commission. 

 

8. Prepare studies for the Board related to operational procedures, capital 

expenditures and strategic plan; prepare meeting memos and background reports for the 

Board on current issues facing the Board and Mandan. 

 

9. Serve as Mandan’s representative on the governing boards of community 

organizations, including the Mandan Growth Fund, and attend various meetings and 

group functions as deemed necessary by the Board and/or the city administrator. 

 

  

10. Coordinate preparation of the annual budget and capital plan, and present 

proposed budgets and plans to the Board. 

 

11. Participate in the selection process for department heads and other upper level 

administrative employee positions, and make hiring recommendations to the Board. 

 

12. Conduct annual performance appraisals of department heads in cooperation with 

the portfolio city commissioner. 

 

13. Perform such other duties as deemed necessary by the Board or the city 

administrator. 

 

This written Agreement supercedes and merges all previous written and oral negotiations 

and commitments of the Parties with respect to the matters addressed.  This Agreement 

may be waived or amended only in writing. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Employment Contract City Administrator 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, 

their successors and assigns, and is executed by the Parties. 

CITY OF MANDAN 

 

 

By: ________________________________ Date:   ________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ Date:   ________________ 

Malcolm Brown, City Attorney 

 

 

PARTY OF THE SECOND PART 

  

 

______________________________________ Date:   ________________ 

James Neubauer 

801 25th Street SE, Mandan, North Dakota 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider options relative to the $75,000 exemption for 

new residential construction. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  As we look at declining revenues related our State 

Aid Distribution, one of the exemptions that Mandan currently provides is the first 

$75,000 for two years on the purchase of new homes or condominiums. Morton County 

and Bismarck do not currently offer this exemption, Lincoln recently eliminated the 

exemption and Burleigh County offers a similar exemption if the purchaser takes the 

opportunities afforded the First Time Homebuyers Program. 

 

Based upon the 2015 mill levy, and 204 exemptions at $75,000 each would amount to an 

additional $46,000 in the City’s General Fund. Other taxing districts (County, Schools, 

Park, etc.) would also see their general fund revenue increase. The effect of the 

exemption on a home valued more than $75k to the city is $225/year. When including the 

other taxing districts the effect is $944/year (based upon the 2015 mill levy). The total 

increase in revenue for all taxing districts would have amounted to $192,608/year. (Based 

upon the 2015 mill levy) 

 

There are certainly pros and cons to this issue. It could be argued that removing the 

exemption increases the cost of new home ownership and thus may have an effect on new 

home sales. By Mandan offering this exemption, potential buyers may chose Mandan 

rather than elsewhere. On the other hand, when the exemption was first enacted, the price 

of a new home may have been in the $75,000 range and with today’s entry level home 

priced between $200 - $300,000 the effect of the exemption is minimal. There is no limit 

(other than $75,000) to the price of the home under the current exemption. 

 

Options for consideration: 

a) Continue with the exemption 

b) Discontinue the exemption 

MEETING DATE: June 7, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 3, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: New home construction 1
st
 $75k exemption 

 

  

Old Business No. 1 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: New home construction 1
st
 $75k exemption 

Page 2 of 2 

 

c) Limit the exemption to buyers that take the opportunity afforded by the First Time 

Home Buyers Program (currently in Burleigh County, seldom used) 

d) Allow the exemption for homes with a purchase price of equal to or less than $----  

e) Phase out the exemption over time 

 

This item is placed on the agenda for discussion and possible direction to staff. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   n/a 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

STAFF IMPACT:   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider an amendment to the Central Dakota 

Communications Center (CenCom) current Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: A large portion of funding needed for operations of 

CenCom comes from the $1.00 911 fee collected from cellular and landline telephone users. For 

every $1.00 collected, 15% is currently retained by the North Dakota Association of Counties 

(NDAC). The 9-1-1 Strategic Technology Planning Subcommittee met on April 20, 2016 and 

voted to reduce the NDAC obligation of 911 fees from 15% to 10% that will result in an 

additional 5% allocation of 911 fees toward the CenCom operational budget. The current 

CenCom JPA provides 15% of 911 fees to be allocated to the NDAC and the JPA needs to 

change to reflect the proposed 10% allocation effective January 1, 2017. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Memorandum received from Mike Dannenfelzer, Director of 

CenCom. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The additional funding towards the CenCom operational budget should 

reduce the general fund obligation for the City of Mandan. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  None 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  The proposed change to the CenCom JPA has been sent to City Attorney 

Brown. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the Commission approve the proposed amendment to 

the CenCom JPA 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the proposed amendment to the CenCom JPA 

changing NDAC contribution from 15% to 10%.       

       

 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 23, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire/Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement  

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 7, 2016  

Subject: CenCom JPA Amendment 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 7, 2016  

Subject: CenCom JPA Amendment 

Page 3 of 4 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: June 7, 2016  

Subject: CenCom JPA Amendment 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To inform commission of the proposed route and other 

changes to the Bis-Man Transit System. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Bis-Man Transit saw a need for revisions to 

increase ridership and thus make the system more economically viable. Roy Ricker, Bis-

Man Transit Director, has spearheaded this effort and will present the proposed changes 

and why the changes are necessary. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Proposed Fixed Route, Paratransit Revisions  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None to the city of Mandan  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Presentation as an information item.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: None, for information.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Roy Rickert, Bis-Man Transit Director 

SUBJECT: Bis-Man Transit Proposed Revisions 

 

  

New Business No. 2 



 

 

 

 

 

Proposed 

Fixed Route, 

Paratransit 

Revisions 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2016



 
 

2  Table	of	Contents	
Introduction 

The Need for Revisions ....................................................................................................... 3 

Background Summary ......................................................................................................... 3 

 

Fixed Route System Revisions 

Overview of Fixed Route Service ........................................................................................ 6  

Route Examination .............................................................................................................. 6 

     Black Route ..................................................................................................................... 6 

     Blue Route ...................................................................................................................... 6 

     Green Route .................................................................................................................... 6 

     Red Route ....................................................................................................................... 7 

     Brown Route (Mandan) .................................................................................................. 7 

     Purple Route (Mandan) .................................................................................................. 7 

Bismarck Proposed Revisions Map ..................................................................................... 8 

     Black Route ..................................................................................................................... 9 

     Blue Route .................................................................................................................... 10 

     Green Route ................................................................................................................. 11 

     Red Route ..................................................................................................................... 12 

Mandan Proposed Revisions Map .................................................................................... 13 

     Brown Route ................................................................................................................. 14 

     Purple Route ................................................................................................................. 15 

Fixed Route Schedule ........................................................................................................ 16 

Demand Response System Revisions 

Overview of Paratransit Service ........................................................................................ 17 

Overview of Extended Hours Service ................................................................................ 17 

Overview of Sunday Service .............................................................................................. 18 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 
 

3  Introduction	

The	Need	for	Revisions	
Due to federal and state funding cuts over the past year, concern has been expressed about the 

sustainability of the public transportation systems provided by Bis‐Man Transit. These concerns have 

prompted the organization to take a critical look at its structure and at how resources are dedicated 

within that structure. 

Bismarck‐Mandan’s fixed route system, Capital Area Transit, began providing service in 2004. Presently 

the system is comprised of 12 routes totaling about 123 miles of service. Of those dozen routes, 10 

exclusively serve Bismarck, while two routes link Mandan and Bismarck. Service begins Monday through 

Saturday at about 6 a.m. and is concluded by 7 p.m., depending on the route. At peak transportation 

times, as many as seven fixed route buses are in service.  

The demand response system has been providing door‐to‐door service to up to two miles outside the 

corporate city limits of Bismarck, Mandan, Lincoln and the University of Mary since 1990. The system 

operates 24/7/365. During peak travel times, as many as 17 paratransit vehicles are in service. This 

service currently employs liberal eligibility standards resulting in a ‘membership’ of over 13,000 riders.  

Ridership between the two systems has been relatively stagnant for the past five years, and decreased 

about 8 percent from the end of 2014 to the conclusion of 2015. The two systems provided 283,263 

rides in 2015, with Capital Area Transit delivering 133,348 rides while the paratransit system accounted 

for 149,915 rides.  

Bis‐Man Transit is proposing a number of revisions to improve how the fixed route service, as well as the 

demand response system, provides service to the community. These changes have taken into account 

comments and suggestions from the public through listening sessions, as well as the Mobility 2017 study 

that was performed in 2012. This document is intended to give an overview of those changes, as well as 

try to answer initial questions that may arise from the alterations.  

The goal of the proposed revisions is to make the fixed route system easier and more convenient for the 

areas producing the most ridership and transitioning as many capable riders from paratransit to fixed 

route service. Paratransit service is a variable expense which increases with ridership, as opposed to the 

fixed route service which has a flat cost based on service hours, regardless of ridership. By switching 

riders from one mode of service to the other, overall operating costs will eventually reduce by as much 

as 20% and those who truly need paratransit service will receive a higher quality service.  

Background	Summary	
In October 2015, a fixed route ridership survey was conducted. The following list includes some of the 

priorities that ridership felt the system needed to address:  

 28% of individuals surveyed wanted earlier or later hours for the fixed route system.  

 15% of individuals surveyed wanted higher route frequency for the fixed route system. 



 
 

4 
 52% of individuals surveyed said the time it takes to reach a destination on the fixed route 

system was “good”.  

 53% of individuals surveyed said the fixed route was a “good” use of their time.  

 47% of individuals surveyed said the overall stress of using the fixed route was good.  

Some suggestions gathered from individuals participating in the survey included the following:  

 More direct routes. 

 Go to the University of Mary. 

In January 2016 Bis‐Man Transit held the first of three listening sessions to give the organization another 

chance to gather input from advocacy groups, current stakeholders, current riders, and the community 

at large.  Both staff and Bis‐Man Transit Board members attended these listening sessions, listening to 

the inquiries and comments from attendees and answering questions. The listening sessions were held 

at locations in Bismarck and Mandan:  

 January 29, 2016, at Bis‐Man Transit Center. 

 February 3, 2016, at Mandan City Hall. 

 February 10, 2016, at Bismarck Veteran’s Memorial Public Library. 

The listening sessions also provided a number of opportunities for input from the general public. Some 

public responses included the following:  

 Fixed route service to the University of Mary. 

 Frequency of fixed route service is inconsistent and needs to be higher.  

 The paratransit needs to be more streamline and efficient.  

 Paratransit needs to be more consistent with pickup times and the duration until clients are 

dropped off.  

 There needs to be balance between the fixed route and paratransit systems that doesn’t 

currently exist.  

Based on all of the input provided by the community well as recommendations from the Mobility 2017 

study, Bis‐Man Transit staff created a draft proposal for a new transit system structure to replace what 

is in place currently. This proposal would include a new route structure for the fixed route system, 

eligibility changes for the paratransit system, revised hours of service for both the fixed route and 

paratransit systems, and the creation of a third service that would be available for night and Sunday 

service.  

A Community Public Transportation Task Force was pulled together that included a collection of 

community leaders and professionals to provide additional suggestions and recommendations for 

improvements to the overall system and review the draft of existing revisions. The initial meeting on 

March 10, 2016, resulted a great deal of discussion and the task force requesting more information 

about how the present system is constructed and to see the completed proposal. The task force would 



 
 

5 
meet a second time on May 25, 2016, and subsequently voted to support the proposed revisions to    

the public transportation system.  

Following this endorsement, several advocacy agencies were approached to discuss the revisions and 

how they might affect their clientele.  Overall, the responses were positive.  Those agencies that serve 

the disabled community thought that the proposed revisions would result in higher quality service with 

only a few minor drawbacks.  One agency that serves the aging population determined that the revisions 

would most likely impact negatively on their organization but conceded that they were probably 

beneficial to the transit system and the overall community. 

At its monthly meeting on May 26, 2016, the Bis‐Man Transit Board voted to approve the proposed 

system revisions, and take them to the Bismarck City Commission for a public hearing and opportunity 

to implement changes if given the Commission’s approval. 

Between now and that potential July public hearing, Bis‐Man Transit will also host another public 

listening session to answer questions and address any concerns of the community. Implementation of 

the proposed revisions is able to begin on September 1, 2016, to allow for dissemination of new rider 

information.  



 
 

6 
Fixed	Route	System	Changes	

Overview	of	Fixed‐Route	Service	
The most significant revision for the fixed route will be the philosophical switch from utilizing a large 

geographic footprint to cover the greatest possible area, that of higher frequency within the core 

ridership areas. This alteration will allow for more consistent and convenient runs along major ridership 

corridors by providing greater bus frequency.  

 Routes are being reconfigured to reduce the geographical footprint of the service and focusing 

them on higher usage areas. 

 The 12 circuitous interlined routes will be replaced with six direct routes. 

 Fixed Route service will operate Monday through Friday, 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and Saturday, 

8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

 Five routes will have one hour headways with one being a pilot route to service U‐Mary and 

there will be one circulator with a two‐hour headway.  

 A “My Ride” pilot program for Student Fares will begin, allowing for six month Semester passes 

good from July 1 to December 31 and January 1 to June 30.  This will be a sponsored program 

and rates will be based on the number of pre‐sold passes, with the option to extend to private 

sector. 

 Passengers that are 65 years of age or older and passengers that are ADA qualified or receiving 

Medicare will be able to ride the Fixed Route service for free, with an appropriate Transit‐issued 

ID. 

 Overall revenue hour increase will be negligible and offset by reduced maintenance and 

deadhead cost savings. 

Route	Examination	

Black	Route	–	Kirkwood	Mall	to	Gateway	Mall	
This route follows the center‐most corridor of Bismarck, streamlining one of our top‐performing routes 

and moving customers to the north and south parts of the city. It will also provide service to St. Alexius, 

Bismarck High School and the State Capitol grounds.  

Blue	Route	–	Kirkwood	Mall	to	Bismarck	State	College	
This route will connect individuals coming from, and going to, Mandan with Bismarck, as well as people 

utilizing Bismarck State College with Kirkwood Mall. Other areas highlighted on the route will be Dan’s 

Supermarket, Dakota Zoo, Riverside Education Center, High Rise, Arrowhead Plaza, and YMCA.  

Green	Route	–	Kirkwood	Mall	to	University	of	Mary	
This route will connect the University of Mary with Kirkwood Mall and ultimately Bismarck. Other 

highlights along the route include United Tribes Technical College, intermodal options through Bismarck 

Municipal Airport, south Super Wal‐Mart, and Cash Wise Foods.  



 
 

7 
Red	Route	–	Kirkwood	Mall	to	Gateway	Mall,	Gateway	Mall	to	Bismarck	State	College		
This route will provide service from Bismarck State College to north Bismarck, as well as connect 

customers in the eastern portion of town with north and south Bismarck. Other highlighted areas on the 

route includes Burleigh County Senior Center, Simle School, Ruth Meiers, Bismarck Veterans Memorial 

Library, Sanford, Bismarck Event Center, Gateway Mall, Pinehurst Shopping Center, north Dan’s 

Supermarket and north Super Wal‐Mart.   

Brown	Route	(Mandan)	–	Dan’s	Supermarket	to	Kirkwood	Mall		
This route will provide service to South Mandan and connect Mandan with Bismarck. Service will also be 

provided to the Fort Lincoln Trolley, a number of businesses along the Strip, as well as Raging Rivers 

Water Park and the soon‐to‐be‐built YMCA.  

Purple	Route	(Mandan)	–	Dan’s	Supermarket	to	Bismarck	State	College		
This route will provide service to North Mandan and connect Mandan with Bismarck. Service will also be 

provided to the Mandan Braves Center, Sanford Health Sunset Drive Continuing Care Center, Super Wal‐

Mart, Liberty Heights, and Sanford East Mandan Clinic.  

   



, .
• >

17- .
c.-

~

....
....

DO.._, .. ~~ .

:,;,:\:

N

W~E :Iol

S

:It

e- '1
0

s t ~
~ ....- . . ~ j \
, .~. iB i • '\-- 36,.

C!I

M . ... I

-' I y
~ e \

,
J.

25

t

..

--

......
11 ~,

o

_______..1

-!

-- I

;

- - - - - "

33

,. , 21
, """,~"t

; I
• e

i -~"~I Y "':'"~....
-"' ~ I' .r_. .

11roIIIIJ1·...1lIIII1 •

i I

...

-



Ba
He"Car.

Ed
Vis

INTERStA TE

011
Christian
School

K· art
5

,.

os .....

RI mussen !
JSNO Business -

Colleqe

14th Street ....11

rdl

rn
On's

7

I

33

IDUONTOH

30 AHCClUWt"
~

1iOEP(JC)(NCE

APO.lOa
!¥

~ "t~

i i ~"\.l ~ot,,~
~ ~I'_..,
• -ow ~

Centenn ial ~""
E SChool ~

-.atnD

~ i~U~'
AU.fY y,(w

S~~~"o~~ts ~
:l
i

~ C D

. i'\

lisoun
SlOpe

HIlLVIEW

. :;

2 Sa~1
SChool

11

-; ; ! ~ s

00SSEJl
ior

'""TtR i!:Canter
~

flOATER

SPAULOWG

Plo,,",
School

M

Anne'l

Ric II D

o

'WUT

~

Ruth

14~

~ Tt

GOVE"""'" 24

SI. Alexius
SI. Medical

~ 115
~

C£NTRAl

2

•
: 5• •

Ubrary :

•••
Sanford:
Health :

~~~ :

DMDE ,.--__---~

CAPnoL J~~
GROUf/OS ce

1lOlU._..•...
~ f ~

% W1I1-loloort :
... Sc.nool •

••
B

• High
SChOol

•
City :
Nun lng .

••
SWUT •z Civic f

N ~C ~le r :

b G~'I '

D Martin
L r ~

e SChool c
i ~ ~

Hlgh~
Rlse LJ

- 1St
SEMlNOlE A1!i::. ~
SlQU' head

Plaza

e

IlOIA£\rARll

TOWtR Sl 'Y's
High

SChool

I
North <S
Brook
Mall

I
t;;

Hug
Admin.

D

Y CA 0&AC>i

:~=:. ~
Center i

GA"llEH

~
35

DIVIDE

Ie

2
Super 5ama

Walmart ClubUf

o

FROM'I£R

..
w

"CESSNA g",

-II

!

20 00IIlT
STARDuST ~
Jeanette ~

yhr SChool :;;

~EXP"RES$'frA"

""'TH
"TH
n"
IT"

"'"
"''"

AAJIDO

eashWI.
Foodl

MCMIOAN

1
Kirkwood

Mall

! i ~
~ Dorothy

MOl

SChaum~
Ice
1Clrte<
Pool

BOIS'

10
"" an's

~ SuperMarket

I~~~AY

•
~jtl W'UDW

",.

WAO<TtR

16
UHWODD



BOULEVA!

SPAULDING

HAR

PORT

Pion r
School

BRAM

SI. Anne's

."';i:;'--
;! CENTRAL

Ric It
S a

DIVIDE

w

g
o
a:
u..

Ruth
Meiers

D

OWENS

FRONT

x SWEET :r x
~

,... e ,...
~

,...
!:! :!

BOWEN

~.us
INGAlS

INDIANA

MICHIGAN ~
STARDUST ((''$o~

ARBOR 20 ORBIT
STARDUST

Cash Wise
JeanetteFoods

Myhre School

:r BISMARCK EXI
~ :r,...

1ST ~ VIRGI
2ND > pUJ

3RD '" UJa: a: :sw < c4TH 4TH ..,
3: Cl :z

~
a:

~5TH s 0
w w
0 Cl

~6TH

7TH PARI
8TH ~
9TH =>

Q.

10TH
UJ
a:

AMERICAN,...
'" BOEINGw
3:
~ CONTINENTAL
a: a
0 uz DELTA "CESSNA

1>

~
BASIN

Wvn_

:r,...
'"

:r,...
00

:r 14§ :r i!: :r
~

,... ,... :r ,...
00 ,...

!:! :!B ~

iiiA

ROSSER

St. Alexius
SI. Medical THAYER

arys
BROADWAY

:r 15,...
00

MAIN
:r,...
a>

Heritage
Center

Bismarck
High

:r School
I:::

4

State
Capitol

Sanford
Health
Cltv
Han

2"0
City
Nursing

o ~
a:

~ Wachter ~
LANSING School §

Library

CENTRAL

i!: Civic ~
" Center

Gold's
Gym

BOULEVARD

CAPITOL
GROUNDS

BOZE

~ ~
i!: WIII·Moore
Of School

F

A

E

"0

a:

o Martin
Luther ~

C School C

o i: i!:
~ ..., '"

.51.

. .... 1
•eKir wood ~

all

\!i
DENVER

1"lJLSA :r
Dorothy I:::
Mose '-90School

c aumberg
Ice Arena 'I-Wachter

Pool
~'\~

~,,)' 0z
0

TUCSON z :;
0 :r

~ ~
-c <,,?

~
iii a:

Q 0 :;
:r =>:;: :; 50 u

0
a:,.,

WACHTER

THAYER

UJ
DIVIOE

x >< x
u 3: ..
~ ~

0 .
a:

..1 < ....
~~
~ mOl'
~

BOULEVARD

TOWER SI. Mary's
High

F School

High~
Rise u

INDIANA

C

ROSSER

~
~ ~
~_ARIKARA
~
~ SEMINOLE

SIOUX

e roox
Mall 0

Sl'\"D~z
N

Z
Z 0,...s §!1

Northridgez Q. :;: KAVANEY-c :;
> => '" School-ca: '" 3:

'" OWENS-c

YMCA OSAGE

O£IO<EE

Hughes
Admin.

o

MASON

INGAl S

RBORi

I 10 -l9~
z I~ an 's
~ SuperMarket
~ BISMARCK EXPRESSWA
~ PORTlA 0
-c
3:

z
u:z
z
~

zo
'"a:
UJ
oz
-c

o
is

B :;
Roosevelt ~
ASchool cath :dral

z
u:u.
a:
Cl

z
u:
~ AU£Y
ClHAN, IAN

SWEET

:::l
UJ
CD

z
",_ BOWEN
a:
w
oz..

GARDEN

F

INDIANA
MEADOW

z
u:
u.
ir
Cl

... C...
UJ
CD

:::l
UJ
CD

Riverside
Educatlo

Center

RlVERWOOO

35

Z BOISE

~v.uowe:

~ 16 EASY

\ ASHWOOD

B1RCHWOOO

RENO
0 18SOUTHWooD ~
'" 0

WOODSMAN Lli
~0z

w z a:
a: ~ ~

COLOGNE o
z

;l;
:r

~
z

AUGSBURG '"z 0 -e
0z ~

CD 3: zs /1 HAMBURG :s
><.::s ..

~ 0
WACHTER

!f:

ill
CD

STBENEDICT

~
:;

~

g
a:
u

OWENS

CENTRAL

Riverside
Park

KEAnNG

Dakota
Zoo

/

~tu
~ ~
:lj",

SHIRLEY MISSOURI

Bank of NO I>:

~'\ ~9 «; ti
s~1'r

........~......;DIVIDE - __...

EDWAROS
:l':

~ ~
m ~

~fZ ~
~HIghlancr;.
Q A"cres ('>

Q. School 1f;,
PRAIRIE ~

PFiOSPEc r

~,,\'i'\j\'e'llVICTOAY

i
o
~

Student UnionSSC
Campus



17
tre nsn
Cenlet

Sial •
PenltenUary

Rita
~

0

f '~~ ~
ROSSE"

Il!

~
.If I"f

; ~~
t

",...

\<0.-':
"""".

BIln:RROOT

AStER B£GQNLA

C'

Sl Vlncents
~N.Ho me

~
~ i E

BROADWAY

11

"""""SenIor
THA'f£R % Center

~

......"'"

~ ~
%

~ !i ~ ~ I;UE£I\.V r~S ~ ~ ~
r

~ !~ B "
~

Sar;vlk ~ ~

SChool Q,.",,.

1M'
FlOSWl

Sanford Sl, AlexlusHealth
St. Medical THA'YEA

~X Mary.
BROADWAY2'0 % 15

City "'IN
Nursing ~

fRONT

0 e ~ r'EET E ~ ~ i~ Civic E
~Cenler

BOWEN
Gokl's

~'0 Gym "'" .......
Nl",",

~ MCH"",

".....~""

St Mary"
High

SchOol

Bl$tnCIrck
0 Marlin

High

l uthtr ~
~ SC_I

C SChool C
~ ~

Q

~ ~ ~ 14 ~ E•
Ubrary

"OSSE"

'OWO"

HugheS
AdmIn.

o

"",E"

~
, II ~
lCllth-edral

Bi5marck AIrport

$TANDIOO ROQCAD
us Army

Reserve Genler

~ fQR1 8£l11THOlD AYE ....

~~ UTTCWe-linen 0

~ ~I" ~

D 22

o

1::; PEJn.sVll,'~~ ""rn ~

J ! B I ~ - l::
III

Q " ~ § § ~
""" !l

i e.RlNtllF': ~ !~

BASIN

"''''"
CashWI$e

food .

~ 'sr
§

>NO
~

"'"
"" ""

""""
""IlTlt

iT"

'OTH

ST lOUIS

:AscensIon
Church

"'...Dorolhy
MOSH
SChool

SChaumb«g
IceArena

WlchtM
Pool

"'.
HWOOO

,,""""
~~
DSl.W.I :i

''IN' e
Ii!

lBUllO .J>
~.....

I)l,CHTER

9
'"""'"
llhl!!!m
enecr

;(IFOf!D

""'''"''''''c"
i
i,
;".

RtEION



('

•

! I
II

\.\\
CQll)R.\

s

I

Edaowood §
Vill. ~

S

-

\ 00
Bt!:otAARCI'\[l.JlIRlSSw"" 9. ~

1lQO<..,Y"
L<MT1

swm

,

11

o

rAnn pAlol:

t,uptnoti
Workforcei:,";eM

Super
Walmart

K· ort
5

s
"

PORllA

Pioneer
SChool

ftAAl,IAN

t. Anne',

----""""'."

"""'-

20 ORBIt
IURO\JSf ~

Jeenene ~
Myh School ;

.....

RIo

~
t !
21 S

•.w.o..

....BOA

C..h Wlte
FoodS

!

"

.....,.-I

15

14 ~

-

5o

-~~--------~~----'"

RUlh
Melero

4

......... 24

s tate
Capitol '\.~

CAPITOL Horll.go
GROUNDS Canlor

1

8DU'l.[\lARD

~ E e ~
~ W1~=-

D UlIrtln

e SChGol c 5
~ ~ ~

1
Kirkwood

Mall

\
\

""'.,,,,

!
orth a

Broo k
I

33

IIOU.EVARD
lO\'I'EFI St lAar{ 1

~~

o
an's

uperMarkel
B/SUARCKEXF11ESSWAY

PO!JT!.AMl

§ Ii ...,...... fiI
... sntwOl E 1Ii 0

~ Arrow- iii
scox head

Plaza

31

r"""~:;-""------""'-"""'
is !! (!

§ § \
a:u~ _ ~

./,~ ;,

YMCA

Hughes
Admin.

D

.-

I,
......"..\...""""

OCO"'"

"'AllOW

~ i
<',"!\lOy ...130r

."""

i

...."""

o.kO ta
ZOO

\
I

.......
of NO I!
9 .# 5

......

Student Union

V8

\
\

BISMARCK, NORTH DAKOTAI



MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

..,,~" ' 011 •
• UncoIn I

\ TroIle1 i ~.. . .

Miles

M"

,.1'tr..~ "i'~' I
# ' I. Is I•

""- - --..................... ..--, --...".....

o 0.5

i-00_
Ctn lennlill-""'.,..• •

" '!' •. i .
l! I .....;,.

~.. ~o .' ! ••
~-r: t

Itt.... • ,., .. "'.

..

e

i
I

........ \

.............._--

i":"~
••......,...

0:." l
;. I
\

81...,...

~ ......

No Smoking
in Buses

or Shelters.

V6

.....

'.



ills
~
Si:

LONGSPUR TRAILSE

Rodeo
Grounds
and

Race
Track

Dakotah
Centennial

Park

Prairie West
GolfCourse

COUNTRYSIDELANE

w ~ ~
71 ~ ~ ELM ~

~ rn rn
~ POPLAR

'Mn~- -

EGATEVIAY.>.

Centre, ""~ ""~ DAKOTA TRAIL

Incj 4y" f PIONEERTR~IL
~""O FtmmER TRAIL

~o:::
m~~
51~~
~(I)m
rm~

~ ~ m

'" ~ ~~ ~ ::t:

c 15
~ ~
~ "

3RDSTSW

ANTELOPE;:

~ BUFFALO

~ wCOVOTE

~WDEER
~ SMEADOW

PRAIRIE LANES

THSTSW



1

s

Expt'essGateway to Klrl<\YOOd E·2

E B smare • Roule A·1 ~
E Blsmarc • Route A-2 If E

SW B'smarek· Route B-1

t •••••• •

Prin By:

0.5

Miles

...... II SW Bismarck - Route B-2

- BlSITlarek & Mandan M·

- Mandan & Blsmarck ·2

Indical s TIming POint II'S

0' Shelter

SlOpZone

IndICa es Stop Permitted

Transfer Pomt

-
........

o

Rodeo
Grounds
and

Rac.o

"'.;

I
~

II..1-----~....-~-!-iil!'----· ~·."F~or~I----~ ...., ....~....
'. Lincoln
'. Trolley···,·····

o ,,~I'I".. ~ ,.
J ::;

.''''''

_51 ....

T,
81

u



 
 

16 
Fixed	Route	Schedule	
 

Weekdays 
Start 
Time  Mandan Kirkwood  BSC  Gateway U‐Mary 

End 
Time 

Purple  7:00  :00   :30      7:00

Brown  6:30  :30 :00        6:30

Blue  7:00    :00 :30      6:30

Black  7:00    :00   :30    7:00

Green  7:00    :00     :30  7:00

Red (2hr 
Headway)  7:30   

Even Hr 
:30

 Odd hour 
:30 :00    7:00

Saturdays 
Start 
Time  Mandan Kirkwood  BSC  Gateway U‐Mary 

End 
Time 

Purple  8:00  :00   :30      7:00

Brown  8:30  :30 :00        6:30

Blue  8:00    :00 :30      6:30

Black  8:00    :00   :30    7:00

Green  8:00    :00     :30  7:00

Red (2hr 
Headway)  8:00   

Even Hr 
:30

 Odd hour 
:30 :00    7:00

 

 

 

 



 
 

17  Demand	Response	System	Changes	

Overview	of	Paratransit	Service	
The paratransit system will be altered to a curb‐to‐curb service with an origin‐to‐destination option 

upon request. Service hours will be close to the fixed route system, beginning at 5:30 a.m. and 

completing at 7 p.m., Monday through Friday, and from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. on Saturdays. Service will be 

provided within the city limits of Bismarck and Mandan, or within ¾ of a mile from a fixed route. For 

passengers outside of that area, West River Transit is available to address their needs.  

ADA standards require service to be comparable to that provided by the fixed route system. The 

paratransit system is not intended to be a transportation service that meets every need of the 

population it serves. Instead, it serves as a safety net for persons whose disabilities prevent them from 

using the accessible fixed route system. Eligibility will be based on ADA standards, and age alone, will no 

longer be a qualifier for the paratransit system.  

The cost for a one‐way trip on the paratransit system will remain at $2.50. The system will observe the 

same holidays as the fixed‐route system, and not provide service New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, 

Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day.  

 ADA paratransit service is provided to complement the fixed route service as required by law. 

This ADA regulated service will be operated at a minimum of the same hours as the fixed routes. 

It is a curb‐to‐curb service with origin‐to‐destination upon request. 

 Eligibility for the service will adhere strictly to ADA standards based solely on a customer’s 

physical and/or mental inability to ride on the accessible fixed route service. 

 Eligibility of customers will be renewed every 3 years, or as needed, if accepted on a conditional 

basis. 

 The service area for complementary ADA service will be within the boundaries of Bismarck and 

Mandan or within ¾ of a mile of a fixed route. 

 Complementary ADA service will be provided Monday through Friday, 5:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

and Saturday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

 Areas currently served by Bis‐Man Transit that do not fall within the new service area can obtain 

service through West River Transportation. 

 There will be no service on holidays that the fixed route does not operate. 

Overview	of	Extended	Hours	Service		
To address the needs of individuals who require transportation options later in the evening, such as 2nd 

and 3rd shift employees, a new service will be created to complement the paratransit and fixed route 

systems, after those services have concluded for the day. This curb‐to‐curb, ride‐share service will begin 

providing service at 7 p.m., Monday through Saturday, and conclude at midnight. The system will 

observe the same holidays as the fixed‐route system, and not provide service New Year’s Day, Memorial 

Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day. 

 Extended Hour Service will be available as a curb‐to‐curb service only. 



 
 

18 
 Service will be available to the general public on a first‐come first‐served basis. 

 Fare per trip will be $5.00. 

 Service Hours will be Monday through Saturday, 7:00 p.m. to 12:00 a.m. and Sundays, 7:30 a.m. 

to 2:30 p.m. 

 The service area will remain the same as the ADA paratransit service. 

 There will be no service on holidays that the fixed route does not operate. 

 The number of buses available will be determined by both budget and demand. 

Overview	of	Sunday	Service		
To address the need for transportation services on Sundays to get clients to and from services such as 

religious worship, a demand response service will be available to the general public on Sundays from 

7:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. Four cutaway buses will be utilized to provide service.  

Similar to the Extended Hours Service, this will be a curb‐to‐curb service with origin‐to‐destination 

available upon request. Rides must be scheduled at least a day in advance, but no more than a week 

ahead of time. Automatically‐populated rides are not available with this service.  

The cost per ride is $5. The system will observe the same holidays as the fixed route system, and not 

provide service New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and 

Christmas Day.  



 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Revisions Addendum 

Why do we need to modify service? 

The available resources for public transportation need to be rebalanced between the two modes that 

we provide. Fixed route service is viewed as a fixed cost since the cost to run the service is the same if 

there is one passenger on the bus or 20.  Comparatively, paratransit service is charged on a per ride 

basis.  Currently 62% of all operating funds are spent on the paratransit service which served 2270 

unique riders in the past year.  As seen in the chart below, the figures for our area are opposite of what 

is typical in a community of this size. 

 

City 

Population 
2014 

Estimate 
Population 
over 65 

Population 
with a 

disability  

Populatio
n over 65 
with a 

disability  

Fixed 
Route 
Rides 

Fixed 
Route 
Rides 
Per 

Capita 
Paratransit 

Rides 

Paratransit 
Rides Per 
Capita 

Billings  106,704  15%  11% 32% 620,739 5.82  51,168 0.48

Fargo   115,503  10.10%  10.50% 42.70% 1,741,524 15.08  53,921 0.47

Grand 
Forks  53,407  10.10%  9.80% 32.70% 346,673 6.49  54,336 1.02

Rapid City  67,869  14.50%  14.30% 37.10% 287,623 4.24  79,261 1.17

Sioux Falls  158,301  10.90%  9.90% 33.30% 955,357 6.04  132,387 0.84

Bismarck/
Mandan  83,957  15.15%  11.65% 35.10% 138,610 1.65  164,718 1.96

(Based on 2014 National Transit Database and the Census Bureau's American Community Survey) 

 

With the continuing rise in operational costs and changes in federal and state funding sources, the 

public transportation system is no longer sustainable under the current operating policies.  The 

following chart depicts the projected revenues and expenses through 2020, both leaving the service as it 

is, as well as if the proposed revisions are implemented. The savings estimated over the next four years 

average $900,000 per year and allows for further improvements to both infrastructure and operations 

of the system. 

 

 



 
 

 

Revenue vs. Expense Projection  

Revenue ‐ Expenses  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020 

No Changes (service remains as is)  ‐$535,953  ‐$537,500  ‐$644,600  ‐$709,400  ‐$805,800 

With Proposed Changes  ‐$527,553  $234,600  $268,500  $235,300  $164,300 

 

Not only will the proposed revisions ensure financial stability of the system, they will also enhance the 

overall service provided.  By optimizing the route structure to focus on where ridership is the greatest 

and increasing the overall frequency, the fixed route service will see an increase in both revenue hours 

and revenue miles provided to the community.  The routes will be less confusing and each will have a 

bus on the route throughout the entire service day.  

By ensuring that the paratransit service remains focused on those passengers that are either physically 

or mentally incapable of utilizing the fixed route service on their own, the number of rides provided on 

that service is expected to decrease dramatically which will allow for an improved customer experience 

in regard to wait times, travel times, and customer service. 

Overall growth of the system has remained at a standstill for the past eight years despite a growth in the 

size of the community.  Because of this, many of these revisions have been discussed since the Mobility 

2017 Report was completed in 2012.  The catalyst for these revisions to be implemented now was the 

loss of approximately $500,000 in federal and state funding as well an overall change in the Bis‐Man 

Transit Board and the Executive Director approach to management of the system.   

 

 

The public transportation system has proved itself to be a valuable benefit for the community. The 

services provided up to this point has become a solid foundation for the future evolution of the system.  

‐

50,000 

100,000 

150,000 

200,000 

250,000 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Tr
ip
s

Trips by Mode

Fixed Route Paratransit



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To hire AE2S firm to provide engineering services 

for Sunset Booster Station and Instrumentation and Controls (I&C) 

Improvements. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: This project has two main components. These 

components have enough relatability to warrant one project and take advantage of 

economies in bidding one larger project; 

1) The Sunset Booster Pump Station is located just off of Old Red Trail near 37
th

 St. 

NW and serves the northwest area of the City. This area is experiencing rapid 

growth increasing demands on the water system. There are periods of time when 

the pumps see high demands and it was determined an upgrade will ensure system 

demands are met.  Phase I will allow the pump station to meet all current peak 

flow demands from new growth areas. 

2) Growth in the Mandan system has resulted in new demands being placed on the 

distribution system. To provide better operational data and meet the growing 

service needs, the I&C system needs to be upgraded to match I&C upgrade 

include with the water treatment facility improvements   The water system 

demand increases have created the need for the pump stations, meters, and check 

points to operate in a more complex manner in order to accurately monitor and 

adjust system variables.  Five remote pump stations/reservoir sites currently are 

not properly equipped to handle the new system challenges spurred by growth. 

This project will upgrade their current I&C equipment and integrate it into the 

overall system. 

 

AE2S is already familiar with the facility needs to be addressed with this project as they 

were instrumental in applying for and receiving a State Water Commission grant for this 

project of 60%. AE2S was selected earlier this year as the water system consultant for the 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Water Treatment Facility 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director; 

Duane Friesz, Facility Superintendent 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider entering into an Engineering 

Service Agreement with AE2S for Sunset 

Booster Station and Distribution Control 

Improvements 

 

  

New Business No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 2 of 9 

 

next three years. Because of that selection process and because of their familiarity with 

the project already, we would recommend to select AE2S for this effort without another 

selection process. 

 

In assessing what the city may need as part of the project, AE2S has increased the 

preliminary estimate from what was thought to be needed last fall. Last fall’s estimate 

was used to submit to the SWC for the grant request that the city was successful in 

getting. Because of this increase, staff is recommending that we only agree to preliminary 

design at this time. The agreement would be adjusted later in add final design and bidding 

after that preliminary design hones in on the scope of the project.  

 

Select attachments are provided. The full agreement and associated attachments are 

available upon request (32 pages).  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 Agreement pages 1 and 12 (Includes cover sheet and signature sheet) 

 Exhibit B – Owners Responsibilities 

 Exhibit C – Payments to Engineer 

 Exhibit E – Project Description 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The agreement for the preliminary design services for this project 

estimates the cost to be $32,600. The city will pay AE2S hourly up to that amount and 

will have to bring back to commission for approval if the amount is expected to exceed 

that. The SWC grant assumes the funding responsibility for 35% of design and 60% for 

construction. Therefore the city’s share based on this estimate would be $32,600x65% 

$21,190 for this agreement. This amount is budgeted out of the utility fund.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Planning and Design Coordination 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Enter into the agreement with AE2S. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to approve the Preliminary Design Engineering 

Services Agreement with AE2S for the Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control 

Improvements project. 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 



New Business NO.4
- Revised 7-5-16

Portfolio 6/15/2016 6/28/2016
Health Inspection Braun, Mike Braun Mike

Cemetery Braun, Mike Braun, Mike

Mandan Airport Authority Braun, Mike Braun,Mike

Engineering Rohr, Dennis Braun,Mike

Water and Sewer Treatment Rohr, Dennis Braun, Mike

Morton Mandan Public Library Tibke, Sandy Braun, Mike

Planning & Zoning Laber, Shauna Braun,Mike

Safet y & Wellness Committee Tibke, Sandy Davis, Scott

Assessing Laber, Shauna Davis, Scott

Building Inspection Laber, Shauna Davis, Scott

Business Development Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim

Public Buildings Laber, Shauna Helbling,Tim

Finance Tibke, Sandy Helbling,Tim

Municipal Court Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna

Streets forestry Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna

Waterline & Sewerline Maintenance Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna

Solid Waste Utility Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna

Street Light Utility Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna

Mandan Parking Authority Rohr, Dennis Rohr, Dennis

Fire Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis

Police Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis

Committees
Cemetery Advisory Committee Tibke, Sandy Braun, Mike

Law Enforcement Center Advisory Committee Van Beek, Arlyn Davis, Scott

CennCom Alternate, Rohr, Dennis Davis, Scott - Alternate

City Planning & Zoning Van Beek, Arlyn Helbling,Tim

Renaissance Zone Braun , Mike Helbling, Tim

Mandan Growth Fund Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim

Mandan Visitors Committee Van Beek, Arlyn Helbling,Tim

BM DA Board of Directors Braun, Mike Helbling,Tim

Finance Comm ittee Tibke, Sandy Helbling,Tim

Dakota Media Access Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna

City Planning & Zon ing - as a resident Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna

County Planning & Zoning Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna

Law Enforcement Center Advisory Comm ittee Braun, Mike Rohr, Dennis

CennCom Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis

County Planning & Zoning Laber, Shauna Rohr, Dennis

Mandan Progress Organization Van Beek, Arlyn



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider portfolio and committee assignments for the 

Board of City Commissioners. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  At the time newly elected commissioners are 

seated portfolio and committee assignments are determined. Mayor Helbling has made 

initial recommendations which are attached and presented to the Board for discussion. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   suggested assignments 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the attached portfolio and committee assignments 

be approved. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the portfolio and committee assignments as 

discussed. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 30, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Tim Helbling, Mayor 

SUBJECT: Commission Portfolio & Committee Assignments 

 

  

New Business No. 4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Portfolio and Committee Assignments 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Portfolio 6/15/2016 6/28/2016 

Health Inspection Braun, Mike Braun Mike 

Cemetery Braun, Mike Braun, Mike 

Mandan Airport Authority Braun, Mike Braun, Mike 

Engineering Rohr, Dennis Braun, Mike 

Water and Sewer Treatment Rohr, Dennis Braun, Mike 

Morton Mandan Public Library Tibke, Sandy Braun, Mike 

Planning & Zoning Laber, Shauna Braun, Mike 

Safety & Wellness Committee Tibke, Sandy Davis, Scott 

Assessing Laber, Shauna Davis, Scott 

Building Inspection Laber, Shauna Davis, Scott 

Business Development Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim 

Public Buildings Laber, Shauna Helbling, Tim 

Finance Tibke, Sandy Helbling, Tim 

Municipal Court Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna 

Streets forestry Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna 

Waterline & Sewerline Maintenance Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna 

Solid Waste Utility Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna 

Street Light Utility Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna 

Mandan Parking Authority Rohr, Dennis Rohr, Dennis 

Fire Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis 

Police Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Portfolio and Committee Assignments 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

  06/15/2016  06/28/2016 

Committees     

Cemetery Advisory Committee Tibke, Sandy Braun, Mike 

Law Enforcement Center Advisory 

Committee 
Van Beek, Arlyn 

Davis, Scott 

CennCom Alternate, Rohr, Dennis 
Davis, Scott - 

Alternate 

City Planning & Zoning Van Beek, Arlyn Helbling, Tim 

Renaissance Zone Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim 

Mandan Growth Fund Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim 

Mandan Visitors Committee Van Beek, Arlyn Helbling, Tim 

BMDA Board of Directors Braun, Mike Helbling, Tim 

Dakota Media Access Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna 

City Planning & Zoning - as a resident Laber, Shauna Laber, Shauna 

County Planning & Zoning Rohr, Dennis Laber, Shauna 

Law Enforcement Center Advisory 

Committee 
Braun, Mike 

Rohr, Dennis 

CennCom Van Beek, Arlyn Rohr, Dennis 

County Planning & Zoning Laber, Shauna Rohr, Dennis 

Mandan Progress  Organization Van Beek, Arlyn   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider the reappointment of a Mandan & a Morton 

County resident to the Dakota Media Access (DMA) Board of Directors. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  DMA serves both Bismarck and Mandan and is 

represented on their Board of Directors by residents of both communities. 

 

DMA President, Jack McDonald, is requesting Morton County resident Sue Balcom, and 

Mandan resident Cameo Skager, be reappointed to the DMA Board as Mandan 

representatives to a term ending July 1, 2020. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Attached letter from Mary Van Sickle & Mr. McDonald 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approving the request from DMA President, Jack 

McDonald. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to reappoint Sue Balcom and Cameo Skager to the 

DMA Board of Directors to a term ending July 1, 2020. 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: June 30, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Reappointments to Dakota Media Access Board  

 

  

New Business No. 5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Reappointments to Dakota Media Access Board 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1244 
 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LAND INTO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON 

COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 

 

WHEREAS, the owners of land described as Lot 2, Block 3, Bahms First Addition located in 

Section 2, Township 138 North, Range 81 West with a Morton County Parcel Number of 30-

0304000 and a physical address of 2300 14
th
 Ave. SE have requested in writing that their property 

be annexed to the City of Mandan; and 

 

WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code Section 40-51.2-03 provides that if the owners of at 

least three-fourths of the assessed value of the property being requested for annexation request 

such action in writing; and 

 

WHEREAS, notice was published in a newspaper of general circulation within the City of 

Mandan on 6/17/2016 and a certified letter announcing the intent to annex was delivered by the 

USPS to Morton County on 6/15/2016 as required by North Dakota Century Code 40-51.2-05. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Description of Parcel of Land being Annexed.  All that land not currently within the 

corporate limits of the City of Mandan that is described as Lot 2, Block 3, Bahms First Addition. 

 

Section 2.  Notice.  The proper officials of the city are hereby directed to publish a copy of this 

ordinance in the Mandan News, the official newspaper, for two successive weeks and take such 

further action as they may deem necessary or desirable. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      June 21, 2016   

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   July 5, 2016   

Recording Date:          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Consider for approval the annexation of 2300 14
th

 Ave. SE 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Previous action restricted uses allowed in this CC zoning district.  This proposed ordinance 

removes those restrictions. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

In 2008 restrictions were placed on the uses that could be developed in this area.  The intent was 

to limit uses to less intense commercial uses rather than more intense industrial uses.  However, 

the categories of uses that were excluded were so broad that commercial uses that were 

considered appropriate for the area were excluded. 

 

In 2013 the use restrictions were removed from the adjoining properties in order to allow 

commercial uses.  This request is to remove the use restrictions from this property in order to 

allow development of a national chain tire sales and auto repair store. 

 

This use is part of Service Group B.  This is an allowed use in the CC district. 

 

Business Development and Communications Director Huber has discussed this proposed 

development with the developer and is in favor of this rezoning. 

 

The use is compatible with neighboring uses. 

 

The Land Use and Transportation Plan recommends that this area be developed with commercial 

uses and this is a commercial use. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted at their 6/27/16 meeting to recommend approval. 

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, P.E. 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, 

Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition 

 

  

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 5, 2016 

Subject: Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve first consideration of Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 Sylvester’s 

Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition. 

ORDINANCE NO. 1246 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE 

MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the CC Restricted zoning district (no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial parking 

lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) and shall be included in the CC 

zoning district: 

 

Lot 3, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition in Section 31, 

Township 139N, Range 80W in the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota 

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in 

accordance with this section.   

 

         

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                       

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:       

First Consideration:       

Second Consideration and Final Approval:      

Recording Date:         

 

 



 

 

  Page 1 

Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

A review of existing language has identified some needed revisions. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

 The violation statements contained in 18-2-4 have been moved to 18-2-2.  The current 

language only applies to 18-2-4 and is meaningless. 

 

 18-2-5 has been renumbered 18-2-4. 

 

 The word offense has been replaced with violation.  An offense is a type of violation. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

This draft was circulated among department directors and other senior staff for review and 

comment.  This version incorporates all comments received.  Staff recommends adoption of this 

ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1247 amending and reenacting 

Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to juvenile curfew. 

  

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jason Zeigler, Chief 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1247 amending 

and reenacting Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to juvenile curfew.   

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 3 



 

 

  Page 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 1247 

 

An Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Sections 18-2-2 through 18-

2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code Related to Juvenile Curfew 

 

Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners: 

 

An Ordinance to amend and reenact Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to juvenile curfew is hereby enacted as follows: 

 
Sec. 18-2-2. - Curfew hours.  

(a) It is unlawful for persons 14 years of age or less to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play in or upon, or drive or ride 

about in a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, or public buildings, places or 

grounds between the hours of 10:30 p.m. and 5:00 a.m.  

(b) It is unlawful for persons 15 years of age to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play in or upon, or drive or ride about in 

a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, or public buildings, places or grounds 

between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 5:00 a.m.  

(c) It is unlawful for a person at least 16 years of age but not yet 18 years of age to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play 

in or upon, or drive or ride about in a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys or 

public buildings, places or grounds between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m.  

(ad) A violation ofny person violating this section is guilty of an infraction. Each violation of this section shall 

constitute a separate offenseviolation.  

(be) Any minor who violates any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to arrest by any police officer 

without process.  

Sec. 18-2-3. - Defense to prosecution.  

(a) It is a defense to prosecution that the minor was: 

(1) Accompanied by the minor's parent or guardian; 

(2) On an errand at the direction of the minor's parent or guardian without any detour or stop;  

(3) In a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel; 

(4) Engaged in an employment activity, or going to or returning home from an employment activity, 

without any detour or stop;  

(5) Involved in an emergency; 

(6) On the sidewalk abutting the minor's residence or abutting the residence of a next-door neighbor if 

the neighbor did not complain to the police department about the minor's presence, except that this 

defense does not apply to a violation of the curfew hours;  

(7) Attending an official school, religious, or other recreational activity supervised by adults and 

sponsored by the city, a civic organization, or another similar entity that takes responsibility for the 

minor, or going to or returning home from, without any detour or stop, an official school, religious, 

or other recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsored by the city, a civic organization, or 

another similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor;  

(8) Exercising First Amendment rights protected by the United States Constitution, such as the free 

exercise of religion, freedom of speech, and the right of assembly; or  

(9) Married or had been married, or had disabilities of minority removed in accordance with law.  



 

 

  Page 3 

(b) It is a defense to prosecution that the owner, operator, or employee of an establishment promptly notified the 

police department that a minor was present on the premises of the establishment during curfew hours and 

refused to leave.  

Sec. 18-2-4. - Penalty.  

(a) Any person violating this section is guilty of an infraction. Each violation of this section shall constitute a 

separate offense.  

(b) Any minor who violates any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to arrest by any police 

officer without process.  

Sec. 18-2-5. - Responsibility of parents and persons owning or managing public places or 

businesses.  

No parent, guardian or other adult having the care and custody of a minor shall knowingly permit such 

minor to be abroad, loiter, idle, wander, stroll or play in or upon the public streets, highways, roads, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, or other public grounds, public places and public buildings, places of 

amusement and entertainment, vacant lots, or any retail or wholesale business establishment, during the 

curfew hours, provided that the provisions of this section do not apply when the juvenile is accompanied 

by his parent, guardian or other adult having the care and custody of the minor. Each violation of the 

provisions of this section shall constitute a separate offense.  
 

 

  

By:___________________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      July 5, 2016   

Second Consideration and Final Passage:       

Publication Date:          

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Code Enforcement Officer enforces provisions of various chapters of the 

code.  This proposed ordinance establishes uniform procedures for enforcing the code. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Code enforcement currently involves working with several 

department directors.  Duties will expand over time to include additional departments.  It is appropriate to 

create a separate code enforcement chapter that establishes uniform procedures for dealing with violations 

of the municipal code. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1248 creating 

Chapter 26 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement. 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1248 

 

An Ordinance to Add and Enact Chapter 26 of the Mandan Municipal 

Code related to code enforcement 

 

WHEREAS, The Mandan Municipal Code has multiple requirements that periodically require 

enforcement actions, and 

 

WHEREAS, The city has employed a code enforcement officer to provide enforcement of city 

code requirements, and 

  

WHEREAS, It is necessary to establish a standard set of requirements and procedures for dealing 

with enforcement issues. 

  

MEETING DATE: July 5, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jason J. Ziegler, Chief of Police 

PRESENTER: Joseph A. Camisa Jr., Code Enforcement Officer 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1248 adding Chapter 26 to the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 4 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 26 is created to read. 

 

Chapter 26:  Municipal Code Enforcement 

Article 1. - Administration 

Sec. 26-1-1. – Authority and Powers, right of entry 

(a) Authority and powers.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall have the 

authority and powers necessary to gain compliance with this code. These powers include 

issuing violation notices and citations, inspecting public and private property and using 

whatever administrative and judicial remedies are available under this code or state and 

federal law. 

(b) Right of entry.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee is authorized to enter any 

building or premises for the purpose of making an inspection or to enforce any ordinance, 

subject to constitutional limitations and the procedures described in Section 2-2-1 of this 

code. 

Sec. 26-1-2. – Areas of Responsibility 

The code enforcement program is responsible for the enforcement of those requirements 

of this code deemed appropriate by the city administrator and city commission in order to ensure 

the protection of the public’s health, safety, welfare and quality of life.  The code enforcement 

officer shall work with department directors to develop an enforcement procedure in the 

following areas of responsibility: 

(1) Municipal nuisance 

(2) Building and property maintenance 

(3) Zoning and land use 

(4) Public places and rights-of-way 

Sec. 26-1-3. – Duties 

(a) Investigation and action.   

(1) The code enforcement officer or designee shall investigate complaints received by 

the city concerning potential violations on public or private property.  If a 

violation is found, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall notify the 

violator and grant reasonable time to correct the violation. 



(2) The code enforcement officer or designee shall monitor activity within the city 

and, if a possible violation is identified, verify the validity of the violation.  Once 

the violation has been verified, the code enforcement officer or designee shall 

take appropriate action to correct the violation. 

(3) Depending on the nature of the violation, the code enforcement officer or 

designee shall issue a notice of violation and demand for corrective action for a 

non-criminal violation or issue a citation into municipal court for a criminal 

violation of city code.  The code enforcement officer or designee may also seek a 

civil penalty or other judicial relief to recoup city costs for mitigation of the 

violation or to obtain a court order to force the property owner to mitigate the 

violation. 

(4) Should a violation present an immediate threat to public health or safety or when 

there is a declared emergency, the code enforcement officer or designee may take 

immediate action to mitigate any threat to public health or safety caused by the 

violation. 

(b) Notification.  Notification of violation shall be delivered in person or by regular mail, 

unless otherwise stated in this code or state or federal law, rule or regulation.  The letter 

shall indicate: 

(1) Location of the violation 

(2) Nature of the violation 

(3) Reference to applicable code 

(4) Time in which to correct the violation 

(5) How to request a reasonable extension of time to correct the violation 

(6) Potential penalties for noncompliance 

Article 2. – Enforcement 

Sec. 26-2-1. – Options 

(a) Selection.  The code enforcement officer or designee may enforce this code through 

administrative, criminal or civil processes.  The Code Enforcement Officer shall use 

discretion in determining the appropriate course of enforcement and shall, whenever 

possible, attempt to obtain compliance through personal contact and explanation of the 

issue before resorting to issuance of a formal notice of violation. 



(b) Administrative.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee is authorized to enforce 

provisions of this Code by initiating administrative proceedings to correct a violation. 

(1) The code enforcement officer or designee may issue a notice of violation and 

order the correction of the violation by a specified date.  The person to whom the 

notice of violation is being directed may be contacted by any means available 

including personal contact, email, social media account, telephone, posting a 

notice on the property or mailing a notice utilizing the United States Postal 

Service.  The date specified for correction of the violation shall be reasonable 

based on the nature and severity of the violation.  Violations that present an 

imminent threat to public health or safety may be ordered to be corrected within 

as short a period as several hours.  Violations that do not present an imminent 

threat to public health or safety shall be given at least 5 days to be corrected. A 

notice to the effect that daily penalties of up to $500 per day may be assessed if 

compliance is not accomplished within the time specified and that any penalty can 

be assessed against the property if unpaid. 

(2) Except for violations that present an imminent threat to public health or safety, the 

person receiving the notice of violation may contact the code enforcement officer 

or designee and request an extension of time to mitigate the violation or file a 

written appeal challenging the order citing the specific grounds for reversal or 

modification of the order.  A request for a time extension or an appeal must be 

filed with the code enforcement officer or other designated city representative 

before the date of compliance specified in the notice of violation.  In the absence 

of a timely appeal, the findings of the Code Enforcement Officer or designee 

contained in the notice of violation shall be deemed true and final. 

(3) When a request for more time to comply is received, the code enforcement officer 

or designee may either grant or deny the request for an extension of time.  Should 

the request for an extension of time be denied, the person who received the notice 

of violation may appeal to the appeals board within 15 days of the denial of a 

request for time extension. 

(4) If the violation is not corrected within the specified time, the code enforcement 

officer or designee shall issue a second notice of violation and specify that after 

the period allowed for compliance that a penalty of up to five hundred dollars 

($500.00) a day will be imposed for each day any violation is permitted to exist 

beyond the time for compliance. The code enforcement officer or designee may 

extend the time of compliance stated in the first notice of violation or state that 

daily penalties will commence on the date of issuance of the second notice of 

violation.  



(5) Failure of the person issued a notice of violation to comply within the time 

specified may result in the city, at its option, taking action to mitigate the 

violation or referring the matter to municipal court. 

(6) If the city elects to take direct action to correct the violation the person will be 

billed for the actual costs incurred by the city plus administrative overhead and a 

penalty amount equal to the per day penalty assessment.  Any bill remaining 

unpaid shall be assessed against the property in the manner used by the city for 

other unpaid bills. 

(c) Criminal. 

(1) City options.  Depending on the seriousness of the violation, the city may seek 

corrective action and penalties in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

(2) Term of violation.  Each day that a violation is allowed to continue shall constitute 

a separate violation that may be cited and prosecuted as a separate action before 

the court. 

(3) Prosecution of Criminal Violation.  At the request of the code enforcement officer 

or designee, the city prosecutor or designee shall bring action in any court of 

competent jurisdiction to charge the violator and mitigate the violation. 

(d) Civil. In addition to the authority to commence administrative proceedings for the 

purpose of imposing civil penalties, a judicial action seeking a civil penalty may be 

commenced by the City Attorney, who may also seek any other relief available to the 

City. Any judicial action for a civil penalty may seek an award for attorney's fees, costs, 

expenses and disbursements. 

Sec. 26-2-2. – Court Action 

(a) Taking any action to mitigate the violation using city resources or city contractors shall 

not preclude the city from taking any other action concurrently. 

(b) When a judgment is obtained by the City in an action for civil penalties, in addition to the 

appropriate methods of enforcement of the judgment established in the North Dakota 

Century Code and North Dakota Rules of Civil Procedure, such judgment for penalties 

shall be assessed and collected in the same manner as other unpaid bills or assessments. 

(c) The City Attorney may maintain an action in a court of competent jurisdiction to compel 

compliance with this code or to restrain by injunction the violation of this code. 

Article 3. – Modifications to notice of violation 

Sec. 26-3-1. – Time Extension 



(a) The person receiving a notice of violation may request and the code enforcement officer 

or designee may grant a time extension for compliance during the period of compliance specified 

in the first notice of violation. 

(b) Once the deadline for compliance stated in the first notice of violation or any extension 

granted by the code enforcement officer or designee has passed, no additional time extension 

may be granted unless authorized by the board of appeals after hearing an appeal. 

Sec. 26-3-2 - Appeal 

(a) Stay of enforcement.  Unless there is an imminent threat to public health or safety, receipt 

of an appeal shall stay any enforcement action by the city. 

(b) Action by code enforcement officer.  Upon receipt of an appeal, the code enforcement 

officer or designee shall forward the appeal to the chairman of the board of appeals. 

(c) Action by the board of appeals.  Upon receiving an appeal from the code enforcement 

officer or designee, the board of appeals shall schedule a hearing on the appeal.  The 

hearing shall be held and a decision rendered no later than 30 days after receipt of the 

appeal by the board of appeals.  Scheduling of the hearing shall be coordinated with the 

person filing the appeal.  If the board of appeals fails to act within 30 days, the appeal 

shall be forwarded to the board of city commissioners for action. 

Sec. 26-3-3. - Board of Appeals 

(a) Composition.  The board of appeals shall consist of three (3) or five (5) members 

appointed for 3 year terms with the initial appointments staggered so individual 

member’s terms expire in different years.  The city administrator shall recommend 

appointments to the board of appeals.  The board of city commissioners shall appoint the 

members of the board of appeals. 

(b) Powers and Duties.  

(1) The board of appeals shall address all questions of interpretation and enforcement 

of city code arising from a notice of violation issued by the code enforcement 

officer or designee. 

(2) The board of appeals shall adopt rules necessary to the conduct of its affairs. 

(3) Meetings shall be held at the call of the chairman or acting chairman. 

(4) Meetings shall be open public meetings. 



(5) Minutes shall be kept that record all actions taken by the board of appeals.  The 

minutes shall document how each board member voted on any action taken.  The 

minutes shall be open to public inspection. 

(4) The board of appeals, at its discretion and based on the nature of the violation, 

may individually notify neighboring property owners or others of the appeal 

hearing. 

(5) The board of appeals, at its discretion, may call expert witnesses to address 

technical issues regarding the notice of violation being appealed. 

(6) The board of appeals, at its discretion, may allow neighbors or other residents of 

the city to speak at the hearing. 

(7) The person filing the appeal may have legal and technical representation at the 

hearing.  Those persons shall be allowed to speak at the hearing. 

Sec. 26-3-4. – Appeal Board Decisions Reviewable 

A decision of the board of appeals may be appealed to the board of city commissioners 

by either the aggrieved applicant or by any officer, department, or board of the city. The appeal 

must be filed with the city administrator within fifteen (15) days after notice of the decision of 

the board of appeals. The board of city commissioners shall fix a time, within thirty (30) days, 

for the hearing of the appeal and shall give due notice of the hearing to the parties. The board of 

city commissioners shall decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Any party may appear in 

person or by agent or by attorney at the hearing of the board of city commissioners on the appeal. 

The board of city commissioners may reverse the decision of the board of appeals, in whole or in 

part, or modify the order, decision, or determination appealed. 

Section 2.  Chapter 26 is enacted as presented. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       July 5, 2016    

Second Consideration and Final Passage:        

Publication Date:           

 


	July 5, 2016 Agenda
	Minutes June 21, 2016 regular mtg.
	Catholic Foundation for the People of Bismarck Diocese games of chance at Prairie West Golf Course - July 18, 2016
	Dakota Zoological Society games of chance at Prairie West Golf Course - August 5, 2016
	Plat Big Sky 6th Addition
	Local match for Family Wellness Interest Buy-Down
	Auction off Planning & Engineering Staff's 1996 GMC Yukon
	Employment Contract for City Administrator
	New Home Construction 1st $75k exemption
	Amendment to Central Dakota Communications Center (CenCom) current Joint Powers Agreement (JPA)
	Bis-Man Transit Proposed Route & other Revisions board doc.
	Bis-Man Transit Exhibit
	Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements
	City Commission Portfolio & Committee Assignments - Revised
	City Commission Portfolio & Committee Assignments
	Reappointments to Dakota Media Access Board of Directors (DMA) - Balcom & Skager
	Ord. No. 1244 - Annexation of 2300 14th Ave. SE
	Ord. No. 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Blk. 1, Sylvester's Industrial Park 3rd Addn.
	Ord. 1247 Amending & reenacting Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of Mandan Municipal Code related to Juvenile Curfew
	Ord. 1248 adding Chap. 26 to Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement

